
Members of the public are welcome to view this meeting and receive information 
about it.   
 

North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the 
information you need.  We are able to provide our documents in alternative 
formats including Braille, audiotape, large print and alternative languages.   
 

For further information please call 0191 643 5359. 
 

 
 

 

Planning 
Committee 

 
4 December 2020 
 
To be held on Tuesday, 15 December 2020 commencing at 10.00 am. This meeting will 
be conducted using video conferencing technology and will be streamed live on the 
Council's YouTube channel. 
 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

 

2.   Appointment of substitutes 
 
To be informed of the appointment of any substitute members for the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable 
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that 
interest. 
 
You are also requested to complete a Declarations of Interests card 
and submit return it to the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the requirement 
to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have 
been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the 
agenda. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 November 
2020. 
 

5 - 6 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 

 

5.   Planning Officer Reports 
 
To receive the attached guidance to members in determining planning 
applications and to give consideration to the planning applications listed 
in the following agenda items. 
 
 

7 - 12 

6.   20/01421/FUL, Dorset Arms, Dorset Avenue, Wallsend 
 
To determine a full planning application from the Dorset Arms Hotel for 
change of use from public house, restaurant and hotel (sui generis) to 
14 bedroom hotel with associated facilities (use class C1). 
 

13 - 26 

Circulation overleaf …



 

 
 

Members of the Planning Committee:  
 

Councillor Ken Barrie Councillor Trish Brady (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Brian Burdis Councillor Linda Darke 
Councillor Sandra Graham Councillor Muriel Green 
Councillor Frank Lott (Chair) Councillor Paul Richardson 
Councillor Willie Samuel Councillor John Stirling 
Councillor Frances Weetman  



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Tuesday, 24 November 2020 

 
Present:  Councillor T Brady (in the Chair) 

  Councillors K Barrie, B Burdis, L Darke, S Graham, 
M Green, P Richardson, W Samuel, J Stirling and 
F Weetman 

 
Apologies:  Councillor F Lott 

 
 
PQ119/20 Appointment of substitutes 

 
There were no substitute members appointed. 
 
 
PQ120/20 Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations reported. 
 
 
PQ121/20 Minutes 

 
Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2020 be confirmed and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
 
PQ122/20 Planning Officer Reports 

 
The Committee received guidance in relation to the principles of decision making when 
determining planning applications and then gave consideration to the planning applications 
listed in the following minutes. 
 
 
PQ123/20 20/01047/FUL, Land North of 45 Sunholme Drive, Wallsend 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with an addendum 
circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a full planning application from Persimmon 
Homes (North East) for development of 35 residential dwellings (C3 use) with the 
associated infrastructure and landscaping.  
 
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various maps, plans 
and photographs. 
  
Members of the Committee asked questions of officers and made comments. In doing so 
the Committee gave particular consideration to: 
a) the relationship between this and the earlier planning application 12/0225/FUL for the 

delivery of up to 650 dwellings on the developable area. The planning officers considered 
that an increase to 680 dwellings was not significant and acceptable; 

b) the action being taken by the Council to ensure that the conditions attached to planning 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
Tuesday, 24 November 2020 

application 12/02025/FUL relating to landscaping were being discharged; 
c) the number and location of the affordable homes to be delivered onsite and secured 

under the terms of a Section 106 agreement; and 
d) the confirmation received from the contaminated land officer that a proposed condition 

requiring the applicant to investigate gas emissions from underground workings was no 
longer required. 

  
Resolved that (1) the Committee is minded to grant the application subject to completion of 
a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the 
conditions set out in the planning officer’s report and addendum and the addition, omission 
or amendment of any other conditions considered necessary; and 
(2) the Head of Housing, Environment and Leisure be granted delegated authority to 
determine the application following the completion of a legal agreement under Section 106 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following: 
25% (9 affordable units) affordable housing: affordable housing provision to be delivered 
onsite  
£3,629.12 – allotments: towards allotment provision in the south west of the borough  
£7,000.00 – ecology and biodiversity: towards mitigating the impacts at the Rising Sun 
Country Park  
£18,637.50 – parks and greenspace: towards mitigating impacts on nearby parks and 
greenspace  
£100,000.00 – primary education  
£7,000.00 or 1 apprentice – Employment and training  
£5,285.00 – coastal mitigation 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date:  15 December 2020 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORTS 
 
 
Background Papers - Access to Information 
 
The background papers used in preparing this schedule are the relevant 
application files the numbers of which appear at the head of each report.  These 
files are available for inspection at the Council offices at Quadrant East, The 
Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North Tyneside. 

 
Principles to guide members and officers in determining planning 
applications and making decisions 
 
Interests of the whole community 
 
Members of Planning Committee should determine planning matters in the 
interests of the whole community of North Tyneside. 
 
All applications should be determined on their respective planning merits. 
 
Members of Planning Committee should not predetermine planning 
applications nor do anything that may reasonably be taken as giving an 
indication of having a closed mind towards planning applications before reading 
the Officers Report and attending the meeting of the Planning Committee and 
listening to the presentation and debate at the meeting. However, councillors 
act as representatives of public opinion in their communities and lobbying of 
members has an important role in the democratic process. Where members of 
the Planning Committee consider it appropriate to publicly support or oppose a 
planning application they can do so. This does not necessarily prevent any 
such member from speaking or voting on the application provided they 
approach the decision making process with an open mind and ensure that they 
take account of all the relevant matters before reaching a decision. Any 
Member (including any substitute Member) who finds themselves in this 
position at the Planning Committee are advised to state, prior to consideration 
of the application, that they have taken a public view on the application. 
 
Where members publicly support or oppose an application they should ensure 
that the planning officers are informed , preferably in writing , so that their views 
can be properly recorded and included in the report to the Planning Committee. 
 
All other members should have regard to these principles when dealing with 
planning matters and must avoid giving an impression that the Council may 
have prejudged the matter. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

Planning Considerations 
 
Planning decisions should be made on planning considerations and should not 
be based on immaterial considerations. 
 
The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as expanded by Government 
Guidance and decided cases define what matters are material to the 
determination of planning applications. 
 
It is the responsibility of officers in preparing reports and recommendations to 
members to identify the material planning considerations and warn members 
about those matters which are not material planning matters. 
 
Briefly, material planning considerations include:- 
 
 North Tyneside Local Plan (adopted July 2017);  
 
 National policies and advice contained in guidance issued by the Secretary 

of State, including the National Planning Policy Framework, Planning 
Practice Guidance, extant Circulars and Ministerial announcements; 

 
 non-statutory planning policies determined by the Council; 
 
 the statutory duty to pay special attention the desirability of preserving or 

enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas; 
 
 the statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a 

listed building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses; 

 
 representations made by statutory consultees and other persons making 

representations in response to the publicity given to applications, to the 
extent that they relate to planning matters. 

 
There is much case law on what are material planning considerations.  The 
consideration must relate to the use and development of land. 
 
Personal considerations and purely financial considerations are not on their 
own material; they can only be material in exceptional situations and only in so 
far as they relate to the use and development of land such as, the need to raise 
income to preserve a listed building which cannot otherwise be achieved. 
 
The planning system does not exist to protect private interests of one person 
against the activities of another or the commercial interests of one business 
against the activities of another. The basic question is not whether owners and 
occupiers or neighbouring properties or trade competitors would experience 
financial or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal 
would unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings, 
which ought to be protected in the public interest. 
 

Page 8



 

Local opposition or support for the proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing 
or granting planning permission, unless that opposition or support is founded 
upon valid planning reasons which can be substantiated by clear evidence. 
 
It will be inevitable that all the considerations will not point either to grant or 
refusal.  Having identified all the material planning considerations and put to 
one side all the immaterial considerations, members must come to a carefully 
balanced decision which can be substantiated if challenged on appeal. 
 
Officers' Advice 
 
All members should pay particular attention to the professional advice and 
recommendations from officers. 
 
They should only resist such advice, if they have good reasons, based on land 
use planning grounds which can be substantiated by clear evidence. 
 
Where the Planning Committee resolves to make a decision contrary to a 
recommendation from officers, members must be aware of their legislative 
responsibilities under Article 35 of the Town & Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) to: 
 
When refusing permission:  

 state clearly and precisely the full reasons for any refusal including 
specifying all the policies and proposals in the development plan 
relevant to the decision; or 
 

When granting permission: 
 give a summary of the reasons for granting permission and of the 

policies and proposals in the development plan relevant to the decision; 
and 

 state clearly and precisely full reasons for each condition imposed, 
specifying all policies and proposals in the development plan which are 
relevant to the decision; and 

 in the case of each pre-commencement condition, state the reason for 
the condition being a pre-commencement condition.  

 
And in both cases to give a statement explaining how, in dealing with the 
application, the LPA has worked with the applicant in a proactive and positive 
manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing 
with the application, having regard to advice in para.s 186-187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Lobbying of Planning Committee Members 
 
While recognising that lobbying of members has an important role in the local 
democratic process, members of Planning Committee should ensure that their 
response is not such as to give reasonable grounds for their impartiality to be 
questioned or to indicate that the decision has already been made. If however, 
members of Committee express an opinion prior to the Planning Committee this 
does not necessarily prevent any such member from speaking or voting on the 
application provided they approach the decision making process with an open Page 9



 

mind and ensure that they take account of all the relevant matters before 
reaching a decision. Any Member (including any substitute Member) who finds 
themselves in this position at the Planning Committee are advised to state, prior 
to consideration of the application, that they have taken a public view on the 
application. 
  
 
Lobbying of Other Members 
 
While recognising that lobbying of members has an important role in the local 
democratic process, all other members should ensure that their response is not 
such as to give reasonable grounds for suggesting that the decision has 
already been made by the Council. 
 
Lobbying  
 
Members of the Planning Committee should ensure that their response to any 
lobbying is not such as to give reasonable grounds for their impartiality to be 
questioned. However all members of the Council should ensure that any 
responses do not give reasonable grounds for suggesting that a decision has 
already been made by the Council. 
 
Members of the Planning Committee should not act as agents (represent or 
undertake any work) for people pursuing planning applications nor should they 
put pressure on officers for a particular recommendation. 

Page 10



 

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORTS 
CONTENTS 

 
6 20/01421/FUL  Northumberland  
  

Dorset Arms Dorset Avenue Wallsend Tyne And Wear NE28 8DX  
  
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Application 
No: 

20/01421/FUL Author: Julia Dawson 

Date valid: 30 September 2020 : 0191 643 6314 
Target 
decision date: 

25 November 2020 Ward: Northumberland 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Dorset Arms, Dorset Avenue, Wallsend, Tyne And Wear, NE28 
8DX 
 
Proposal: Change of use from public house, restaurant and hotel (sui 
generis) to 14 bedroom hotel with associated facilities (use class C1) 
(revised description).  
 
Applicant: Dorset Arms Hotel, Mr Stan Madgin Dorset Arms Dorset Avenue 
Wallsend Tyne And Wear NE28 8DX 
 
Agent: Pd Technical Services, Mr Peter Dawson 21 Sedburgh Road North 
Shields NE25 8UG  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is recommended that members indicate they are minded to approve the 
application subject to the consultation period expiring on 11th December 
2020, and the conditions set out below and the addition or omission of any 
other considered necessary, subject to the receipt of any additional 
comments received following expiry of the consultation period and grant 
delegated powers to the Head of Environment, Housing and Leisure to 
determine the application providing no further matters arise which in the 
opinion of the Head of Environment, Housing and Leisure, raise issues not 
previously considered which justify reconsideration by the Committee.   
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.0 The main issues for Members to consider are: 
 
- Principle of the proposed development; 
- Impact on neighbouring amenity; 
- Impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of surrounding area; 
and 
- Impact on the highway network. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



1.1 Consultation responses and representations received as result of the publicity 
given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site  
2.1 The site to which the application relates is The Dorset Arms which is a large 
detached building located on Dorset Avenue in Wallsend.  The host property is 
north western facing onto Dorset Avenue with a large area of 
hardstanding/parking area to the side and rear, which is accessed via an opening 
onto Dorset Avenue.  An external seating area is located within the garden at the 
front of the premises.  
 
2.2 A two storey semi-detached residential dwelling at 9 Dorset Avenue is 
located adjacent to the application site to the south west.  The rear gardens of 
residential dwellings facing onto Station Road abut the side/north eastern 
boundary of the site.  Beyond the rear boundary of the application site is a 
residential care home with associated garden (Eothen Home). 
 
2.3 The surrounding area is residential in nature and largely consists of two 
storey semi-detached and terraced family dwellings.  The last use of the 
application site was as a public house and restaurant with hotel accommodation. 
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development  
3.1 The proposal relates to the change of use of the site to a hotel (Use Class 
C1) with fourteen bedrooms.  In order to accommodate the change of use the 
following internal changes are proposed to the ground floor layout of the building: 
 
3.2 Omission of ground floor dining room, bar, games and function rooms and 
toilets and the creation of six bedrooms with bathrooms, a 
reception/administration/breakfast area and a staff room. 
 
4.0 Relevant Planning History  
99/01862/FUL - Extend function room, kitchen and yard area. Conservatory 
extension to the rear and alterations to car park including erection of 2.4m high 
close boarded fence. – Approved 21.12.1999 
 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
5.2 Government Policy 
5.3 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019) 
5.4 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (As amended) 
 
5.5 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
LPAs to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development in determining 
development proposals. Due weight should still be attached to Development Plan 
policies according to the degree to which any policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
 

Page 14



PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
6.0 The main issues for Members to consider are: 
- Principle of the proposed development; 
- Impact on neighbouring amenity; 
- Impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of the surrounding 
area; and 
- Impact on the highway network. 
 
6.1 Consultation responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
7.0 Principle of the Proposed Development 
7.1 The NPPF sets out the core planning principles which should underpin 
decisions and that planning should amongst other matters proactively drive and 
support sustainable economic development to deliver the homes, business and 
industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the country needs. 
Every effort should be made objectively to identify and then meet the housing, 
business and other development needs of an area, and respond positively to 
wider opportunities for growth. 
 
7.2 Policy S1.4 ‘General Development Principles’ of the Local Plan states that 
proposals for development will be considered favourably where it can be 
demonstrated that they would accord with the strategic, development 
management or area specific policies of this Plan. Should the overall evidence-
based needs for development already be met additional proposals will be 
considered positively in accordance with the principles for sustainable 
development.  
 
7.3 Policy S2.1 ‘Economic Growth Strategy’ states that proposals that make an 
overall contribution towards sustainable economic growth, prosperity and 
employment in North Tyneside will be encouraged. This include the creation, 
enhancement and expansion of tourist attractions, visitor accommodation and 
infrastructure, capitalising on the Borough's exceptional North Sea coast, River 
Tyne and International Ferry Terminal. 
 
7.4 Policy DM3.4 of the Local Plan states that proposals for main town centre 
uses on sites not within the town centres will be permitted where they meet the 
following criteria: 
a. In order of priority, there are no sequentially preferable sites in-centre, then 
edge of centre, and then existing out-of-centre development sites previously 
occupied by appropriate main town centre uses that are readily accessible to 
Metro stations or other transport connections to the town centres and then finally 
existing out-of-centre locations; 
b. The suitability, availability and viability of sites should be considered in the 
sequential assessment, with particular regard to the nature of the need that is to 
be addressed, edge-of-centre sites should be of a scale that is appropriate to the 
existing centre; 
c. There is flexibility in the business model and operational requirements in terms 
of format; and 
d. The potential sites are easily accessible and well connected to town centres. 

Page 15



 
7.5 Policy AS8.16 ‘Tourism and Visitor Accommodation at the Coast’ states that 
North Tyneside's coastal area provides popular tourist attractions, facilities and 
accommodation that are of importance to the tourism industry for the region.  
Proposals for new or the extension of existing attractions, facilities and 
accommodation will be actively supported to maintain and enhance an attractive, 
vibrant and viable seafront offer where they are: 
a. Able to maintain the overall openness of the coastal area through their location 
and the incorporation of high-quality design and materials in keeping with the 
character of the area; and 
b. Of an appropriate scale in-keeping with surrounding buildings; and 
c. Located where the impact from increased visitors can be accommodated: 
i. By existing infrastructure capacity making best use of public transport provision 
and avoiding increased road congestion; and 
ii. Without significant adverse harm upon the designated coastal environment 
sites and wider 
biodiversity. 
 
7.6 The application site has previously operated as a public house and restaurant 
and has provided hotel accommodation for guests across seven bedrooms on 
the first floor and one bedroom on the ground floor.  It is understood that the 
premises stopped operating as a public house and restaurant as a result of the 
Government lockdown in March 2020 and since this time has focused solely on 
providing accommodation.  It is noted that the applicant has provided 
accommodation to people placed at the premises by the Council’s Housing team.  
The comments submitted by Eothen Homes (residential care home) are also 
noted.  They have advised that the applicant told them that he was providing 
accommodation to homeless people during the initial lockdown period, but since 
the first lockdown ended ex-offenders have also been provided accommodation. 
 
7.7 The applicant has submitted a supporting statement advising that he has 
decided to cease operation as a bar (due to the pandemic and other factors) and 
to continue operating solely as a hotel.  He has acknowledged that in recent 
years he has provided accommodation to guests booked in by the Council.  On 
these occasions he has provided a hotel service to those people who require 
temporary accommodation.  However, he has also advised that he has catered 
for guests from all over the world as well as contractors seeking reasonably 
priced accommodation. 
 
7.8 The current application must be considered based on the information 
submitted as part of the planning application.  Whilst the concerns expressed by 
local residents regarding the use of the premises as a bail hostel are noted, this 
is not what the applicant has applied for.  Members must consider the application 
as detailed in the actual submission. 
 
7.9 It is clear (evidenced by online advertisements and reviews from websites 
such as Tripadvisor and Google) that the premises have provided hotel services 
for several years, alongside the public house and restaurant uses.  This is not in 
dispute.  The applicant can lawfully continue to operate in this way without any 
involvement or control from the Local Planning Authority.  The issue is whether 
the principle of the proposed change of use to a hotel (operating within Use Class 

Page 16



C1 - use as a hotel or as a boarding or guest house where, in each case, no 
significant element of care is provided) with an additional six bedrooms is 
acceptable. 
 
7.10 Members need to determine whether the principle of the proposed change 
of use of the application site to a hotel operating under Use Class C1 is 
acceptable.  Officer advice is that the proposed change of use from a mixed-use 
public house, restaurant and hotel to a single use as a hotel is acceptable.  
Whilst the application site is not located within a designated town centre, it has 
long provided hotel accommodation for visitors to the region.  The intensification 
of this established part of the existing business will provide more accommodation 
for people coming to the region as visitor numbers, tourism and economic activity 
increase once the pandemic is over.  This is in accordance with the objectives of 
the relevant local plan policies and the NPPF as set out above. 
 
8.0 Impact on Amenity 
8.1 NPPF paragraph 180 states that planning decisions should also ensure that 
new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and 
the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider 
area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they should 
mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise 
from new development and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts 
on health and the quality of life. 
 
8.2 Policy S1.4 of the Local Plan states that development proposals should be 
acceptable in terms of their impact upon local amenity for new or existing 
residents and businesses, adjoining premises and land uses. 
 
8.3 DM5.19 states that development proposals that may cause pollution either 
individually or cumulatively of water, air or soil through noise, smell, smoke, 
fumes, gases, steam, dust, vibration, light, and other pollutants will be required to 
incorporate measures to prevent or reduce their pollution so as not to cause 
nuisance or unacceptable impacts on the environment, to people and to 
biodiversity. Development that may be sensitive (such as housing, schools and 
hospitals) to existing or potentially polluting sources will not be sited in proximity 
to such sources. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near to 
sensitive areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated. 
 
8.4 Policy DM6.1 of the Local Plan states that proposals are expected to 
demonstrate a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; a safe 
environment that reduces opportunities for crime and antisocial behaviour; and a 
good standard of amenity for existing and future residents and users of buildings 
and spaces. 
 
8.5 Policy DM7.9 ‘New Development and Waste’ states that all developments are 
expected to: 
a. Provide sustainable waste management during construction and use. 
b. Ensure a suitable location for the storage and collection of waste. 
c. Consider the use of innovative communal waste facilities where practicable. 
 

Page 17



8.6 Significant objection has been received in respect of the harm which has 
been experienced by local residents due to the behaviour of some guests who 
have been staying at the application site since March 2020 in terms of illegal 
activities, trespassing on private residential properties and the care home, and 
residents subsequently feeling unsafe in their homes and when coming and 
going to them.  These concerns are fully noted.   
 
8.7 Local residents are concerned that the application site has been operated as 
a bail hostel, which does not fall within a defined use class and is therefore ‘sui 
generis’.  However, whilst the Local Planning Authority does not dispute that the 
aforementioned activities may have taken place resulting in increased police 
visits to the site, the current application is for a hotel use, not a bail hostel, and 
the impacts of a hotel as proposed must therefore be considered as part of this 
application.   
 
8.8 The applicant has been advised that if they wish to operate a bail hostel or 
any kind of secure residential institution this will need a separate application for 
planning permission.  Such an application would be considered on its individual 
merits.  It is not unusual for hotels to offer short term temporary accommodation 
to people in need.  However, for this to remain lawful (under the provisions of 
Use Class C1), it must be offered as hotel accommodation on a short-term basis.  
If an establishment was solely offering such accommodation and none of or the 
majority of the occupants did not have a permanent residence elsewhere, it is 
likely that this would either be classed as a House of Multiple Occupation or a 
Hostel.  The applicant has applied for neither of these.  If planning permission is 
granted and the site is operated in such a way, the LPA will be able to take 
enforcement action against any unauthorised uses.    
 
8.9 With regard to the impact of a hotel on the amenity of surrounding residents, 
this is considered to be acceptable.  The proposal will see the removal of the 
public bar, games room and restaurant and an increase in the number of guest 
bedrooms.  When compared to the existing offer of eight guest bedrooms it is not 
considered that an additional six guestrooms will result in such an increase in 
activity at the site in terms of associated noise and comings and goings that 
refusal of the application could be justified on these grounds.  It is likely that there 
would be more disturbance as a result of the use of a large bar area, restaurant, 
games room and outside drinking area as per the existing lawful use. 
 
8.10 Members must determine whether the proposed use of the application site 
as a hotel with fourteen guest bedrooms (Use Class C1) will have a harmful 
impact on the residential amenity of surrounding residents.  Officer advice is that, 
subject to conditions to control the future occupancy (i.e. the rooms must not be 
used as a permanent sole residence and the site must not operate as bail hostel 
or secure residential institution), the installation of any new air conditioning, 
extraction and refrigeration plant at the premises, and the control of the hours 
during which guests can use the external areas, the proposed hotel use will not 
result in harm to the residential amenity of surrounding occupants in accordance 
with relevant local and national planning policies. 
 
 
 

Page 18



9.0 Character and Appearance 
9.1 The National Planning Policy Framework states that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development and that permission should be refused for 
development of poor design. 
 
9.2 Policy DM6.1 states that applications will only be permitted where they 
demonstrate high and consistent design standards. Designs should be specific to 
the place, based on a clear analysis the characteristics of the site, its wider 
context and the surrounding area. 
 
9.3 The Council’s ‘Design Quality’ Supplementary Planning Document applies to 
all planning applications that involve building works. It states that extensions 
must offer a high quality of design that will sustain, enhance and preserve the 
quality of the built and natural environment. It further states that extensions 
should complement the form and character of the original building. 
 
9.4 No external alterations are proposed as part of the planning application.  As 
such, the proposed change of use of the premises will not result in any harm to 
the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 
 
9.5 The proposal is considered to be in keeping with the character and 
appearance of the host building and surrounding area.  
 
9.6 Highways Impacts 
9.7 NPPF states that transport issues should be considered from the earliest 
stages of plan-making and development proposals.  It states that significant 
development should be focused on locations which are or can be made 
sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and offering a genuine choice of 
transport modes.  
 
9.8 Paragraph 109 of NPPF states that development should only be prevented or 
refused on transport grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety, or where the residual cumulative impacts of development are 
severe. 
 
9.9 Local Plan Policy DM7.4 New Development and Transport states that the 
Council and its partners will ensure that the transport requirements of new 
development, commensurate to the scale and type of development, are taken 
into account and seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental 
impacts and support residents health and well-being. 
 
9.10 LDD12 Transport and Highways SPD set out the parking standards for new 
development. 
 
9.11 The Council’s Highway Network Manager has been consulted and 
recommended conditional approval of the application, noting that the access 
remains unchanged parking has been provided to meet the needs of the 
development. 
 
The proposal is considered to be acceptable on highways grounds. 
 

Page 19



10.0 Financial Considerations 
10.1 There are three threads of sustainability outlined in NPPF, these being the 
environment, economic and social threads, together with the policies in the NPPF 
as a whole. 
 
10.2 Economically there would be benefits in terms of the provision of jobs via 
the employment of staff at the site and during the conversion phase.  Socially, the 
proposal will add to the existing visitor accommodation in this area, providing an 
additional service to the visitors and tourists. 
 
11.0 Conclusion 
11.1 In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development (hotel, use 
class C) is acceptable in terms of its impact on existing land uses, the amenity of 
existing residents and highway safety.  
 
11.2 Subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions the proposed 
development is acceptable and accords with relevant national and local planning 
policy and is therefore acceptable. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant on expiry consultation 
 
It is recommended that members indicate they are minded to approve the 
application subject to the consultation period expiring on 11th December 
2020, and the conditions set out below and the addition or omission of any 
other considered necessary, subject to the receipt of any additional 
comments received following expiry of the consultation period and grant 
delegated powers to the Head of Environment, Housing and Leisure  to 
determine the application providing no further matters arise which in the 
opinion of the Head of Environment, Housing and Leisure, raise issues not 
previously considered which justify reconsideration by the Committee.   
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans and specifications: 
         - Location Plan, drawing no.2708904_lp, rev.A, 21.09.2020 
         - Site Plan - Proposed, drawing no.2709804_sp, rev.B, 26.10.2020 
         - Proposed Ground Floor Plan, drawing no.2099754, rev.B, 19.11.2020 
         - Proposed First Floor Plan, drawing no.2099754, rev.A, 07.07.2020 
         - Letter from Applicant, dated 18.11.2020 
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2. Standard Time Limit 3 Years FUL MAN02 * 

 
3.    Prior to the installation of any new extraction flue/vent to be provided in 
connection with the approved development, full details must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such details must include 

Page 20



the exact location, height, design and materials.   Thereafter, the development 
shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
4.    Prior to the installation of any new air ventilation system to be installed in 
connection with the approved development, full details must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall thereafter 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details and permanently 
retained. 
         Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
5.    Prior to the installation of any refrigeration plant to be installed in connection 
with the approved development full details must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plant shall thereafter be installed in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the use commencing and 
permanently retained as such. 
         Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
6.    Prior to the installation of any new plant/equipment/extraction/air ventilation 
system at the application site in connection with the approved development a 
noise scheme must first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with BS4142 
and must determine the current background noise levels at the boundary of the 
nearest residential property for the representative time when the plant is 
operational and identify appropriate mitigation measures, where necessary, to 
ensure the combined rating level of external plant and equipment does not 
exceed the current background noise levels by more than 5 decibels.   Thereafter 
the plant must be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 
details. 
         Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
7.    Within one month following installation of any plant and equipment, acoustic 
testing must be undertaken to verify compliance with condition 6 of this approval. 
The results of the acoustic testing shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the plant and equipment shall be 
operated in accordance with the approved details at all future times. 
         Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
8.    Prior to the operation of the approved use facilities for the storage of refuse 
and recycling from the premises shall be provided within the curtilage of the 
application site.  The facilities, which shall not be used/accessed for the purposes 

Page 21



of depositing/emptying glass items (i.e. bottles/broken glass) between the hours 
of 21:00 to 08:00 on any day and for all other waste between 22:00 to 07:00 on 
any day, shall thereafter be permanently retained and used for this purpose. 
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of the area having regard to 
policies DM7.4 of North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
9.    At all times whilst conversion works are being undertaken at the application 
site in connection with the approved development, appropriate measures must be 
put in place to prevent the deposit of mud and other debris onto the highway and 
to suppress dust arising from construction activities.  These measures may 
include a) mechanical street cleaning brushes and b) the provision of water 
bowsers to be made available to spray working areas due to dry conditions. 
Construction works shall not be carried out other than when these appropriate 
measures are on available on site. 
         Reason: To safeguard the occupiers of surrounding properties and users of 
the public highway from any discomfort or loss of amenity arising from 
construction activities on the site. 
 
10. Restrict Hours No Construction Sun BH HOU004 * 

 
11.    There shall be no deliveries or collections to or from the application site 
between the hours of 21:00 and 07:30 on any day. 
         Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
12.    Prior to the installation of any external lights full details of the location and 
design must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: In order to protect the visual and residential amenity of the area, 
having regard to policies DM6.1 and DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017). 
 
13.    There shall be no use of the rear curtilage or any other external area for 
external seating or amenity space associated with the approved use outside of 
the hours of 08:00 and 21:00 on any day and there shall be no playing or 
performance of any music within such areas at any time. 
         Reason: To safeguard the occupiers of adjacent properties from undue 
noise or other associated disturbance having regard to policy DM5.19 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
14.    No amplified music in the form of bands, solo, duo artists, discos, karaoke, 
DJ's or recorded background music is permitted to be played at the premises at 
any time.  
         Reason: To safeguard the occupiers of adjacent properties from undue 
noise or other associated disturbance having regard to policy DM5.19 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
15. Noise No Tannoys Externally Audible NOI002 * 

 

Page 22



 
16.    Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order), the land 
and/or building(s) shall be used only for the purpose of a Hotel (Use Class C1) 
and for no other purpose and it shall not be occupied as any person's sole or 
main place of residence (excluding the owner/manager of the hotel).  The 
owners/operators shall maintain an up-to-date register of all guests and their 
main home addresses (for the duration of their stay and only in accordance with 
GDPR legislation) and shall make this available at all reasonable times to the 
local planning authority. 
         Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the 
use of the site and to ensure that the approved hotel accommodation is not used 
for permanent sole residential occupation or for any other purpose not falling 
within Use Class C1 in order to protect the amenity of surrounding residents in 
accordance with policies S1.4, DM5.19 and DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local 
Plan 2017. 
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
The Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively with the applicant 
to identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the 
proposal comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the 
development plan. These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been 
secured by planning condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore 
implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 
Informatives 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
Advice All Works Within Applicants Land  (I29) 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 23



 

 
Application reference: 20/01421/FUL 
Location: Dorset Arms, Dorset Avenue, Wallsend, Tyne And Wear  
Proposal: Change of use from public house, restaurant and hotel (sui 
generis) to 14 bedroom hotel with associated facilities (use class C1)  

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence 
Number 0100016801 

 

Date: 03.12.2020 

Page 24



 
Appendix 1 – 20/01421/FUL 
Item 1 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Representations 
9no. objections (from 6 separate addresses): 
- Not enough properties were consulted. 
- There has been an increase in police activity at the application site. 
- This is not a hotel, it’s more like a half-way house or hostel. Unacceptable use 
in residential area with families, young children and a nearby care home. 
- Since the pandemic began and the Dorset Arms closed people, including those 
on tags, have been housed there and there has been an increase in criminal and 
unsavoury activities in area, i.e. drug dealing/taking, trespassers in residential 
gardens, people smoking and drinking in front of the site, arguments, burning 
rubbish all day, residents of the site approaching residents of local homes without 
invitation. 
- Residents feel unsafe in their homes. 
- Detrimental impact on property value. 
- Previously quiet family friendly estate is now home to a halfway house. 
- Yard is unsightly and messy. 
 
1no. objection from Eothen Homes (residential care home): 
- Landlord advised us that the probation service was paying him to house ex-
offenders recently released from prison.  We have experienced ex-offenders 
scaling the fence and trespassing in our garden.  This puts our staff and 
residents at risk. 
- The rear garden of the Dorset Arms is being increasingly used by residents 
smoking, drinking, shouting and suspected drug use. 
- This type of facility is not appropriate next to a care home, primary school and a 
home for people with learning difficulties 
- Increase in rooms increases the risks. 
- The proposed use directly next to us will be off putting to prospective residents 
and their families and could have an impact on our ability to maintain required 
occupancy levels. 
 
2.0 Ward Councillor 
2.1 Councillor Andy Newman 
2.2 There are a number of areas in which I feel there is insufficient information or 
areas that need clarified. I have also been contacted by a number of residents 
who have concerns over the changes being proposed and feel the planning 
committee would be best placed to not only ensure the areas of concern that 
have been raised are addressed but the gentleman who has applied for planning 
gets a fair chance to explain his plans to the committee. 
 
3.0 Internal Consultees 
3.1 Highway Network Manager 
3.2 This application is for a change of use from public house, restaurant and 
hotel (sui generis) to 14 bedroom hotel with associated facilities.  Access remains 

Page 25



unchanged parking has been provided to meet the needs of the development.  
Conditional approval is recommended. 
 
Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
Condition: 
PAR04 - Veh: Parking, Garaging before Occ 
REF01 - Refuse Storage: Detail, Provide Before Occ 
 
Informatives: 
I10 - No Doors/Gates to Project over Highways 
I12 - Contact ERH Erect Scaffolding on Rd 
I13 - Don't obstruct Highway, Build Materials 
I46 - Highway Inspection before dvlpt 
 
4.0 External Consultees  
4.1 Newcastle International Airport 
4.2 No comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Planning Officer Reports
	6 20/01421/FUL, Dorset Arms, Dorset Avenue, Wallsend

